

Solvency II Solvency Financial Condition Report

Allianz Life Luxembourg S.A.

8 April 2024

Confidential

Contents

Α.	Busi	ness and Performance	7
А	.1 B	usiness	7
	A.1.1	General information and intercompany structure	7
	A.1.2	Business portfolio	8
	A.1.3	Market and business environment	8
	A.1.4	Strategic developments1	0
	A.1.5	Customer segments and growth products1	0
A		nderwriting Performance1	
A	.3 In	vestment Performance1	0
	A.3.1	Investment result and its components1	0
	A.3.2	Projections over the business planning time period1	2
В.	Syst	em of Governance1	2
В	5.1 F	undamentals1	2
	B.1.1	Corporate bodies1	2
	B.1.2	Key functions1	5
	B.1.3	Policy framework1	5
	B.1.4	Remuneration1	6
	B.1.4.	1 Principles1	6
	B.1.4.	2 Board of Directors1	6
	B.1.4.3	3 Executive employees1	7
	B.1.4.	4 Control process1	7
	B.1.4.	5 Related party transactions1	7
В	5.2 Fi	it and proper requirements1	7
	B.2.1	Scope 17	
	B.2.2	Criteria1	7
	B.2.3	Assessment procedure1	8
В	.3 R	isk management system including own risk and solvency assessment1	8
	B.3.1	Risk Management framework1	8
	B.3.1.	1 General1	8
	B.3.1.	2 Risk management pillars1	9
	B.3.2	Strategy and objectives1	9
	B.3.3	Risk governance2	20
	B.3.3.	1 ComEx and BoD2	20
	B.3.3.2	2 Risk management function2	20
	B.3.4	Risk Management Processes2	21
	B.3.4.	1 Solvency Assessment2	21
	B.3.4.		
	B.3.4.		
	B.3.4.		
	B.3.4.	5	
		Own risk and Solvency Assessment (ORSA)2	
B	5.4 In	ternal control system2	
		Page 2 of 6	62

B.4.1 Overview	
B.4.1.1 Pillars of the Internal of	control system23
B.4.1.2 Non-Financial Risk M	lanagement (NFRM) framework24
B.4.2 Three lines governance mod	el24
B.4.2.1 Functions and their re	sponsibilities24
B.4.2.2 Relationship between	functions25
B.4.3 Compliance Function	
B.5 Internal audit function	
B.5.1 Implementation	
B.5.2 Organizational independence	
B.6 Actuarial Function	
B.7 Outsourcing	
B.7.1 Overview	
B.7.2 Requirements	
B.7.3 Transactions	
B.8 Any other information	
C. Risk profile	
•	
0	
•	
- 1	
·	
,	poses
	-
	s held for index-linked and unit-linked funds)
-	nd unit-linked funds
00	
	receivables
	nce)
•	
	ere shown
-	s
-	sumptions
	Page 3 of 62

	D.2.3 Level of Uncertainty	42
0	D.2.4 Volatility adjustment	43
D.3	3 Other Liabilities	44
0	D.3.1 Provisions other than technical provisions	44
۵	D.3.2 Pension benefit obligations	45
[D.3.3 Deferred tax liabilities	45
[D.3.4 Insurance and intermediaries payables	46
	D.3.5 Reinsurance payables	
0	D.3.6 Payables (trade, not insurance)	46
۵	D.3.7 Any other liabilities, not elsewhere shown	47
E. (Capital Management	48
E.1	Own Funds	48
E	E.1.1 Principles for Capital Management	48
E	E.1.2 Own Fund items	49
E.2	2 Solvency Capital Requirement and Minimum Capital Requirement	49
E	E.2.1 Overview	10
E		49
_	E.2.2 SCR	
	E.2.2 SCR E.2.3 MCR	50
E		50 51
E	E.2.3 MCR	50 51 52
E	E.2.3 MCR E.2.4 Evolution of SCR and MCR Annex	50 51 52 53
E F. /	E.2.3 MCR E.2.4 Evolution of SCR and MCR Annex S.02.01.01.01 (MVBS)	50 51 52 53 53
E E F. /	E.2.3 MCR E.2.4 Evolution of SCR and MCR Annex S.02.01.01.01 (MVBS) S.05.01.01.02 (Premiums, claims and expenses by LoB)	50 51 52 53 53 54
E F. / F.1 F.2	 E.2.3 MCR E.2.4 Evolution of SCR and MCR Annex S.02.01.01.01 (MVBS) S.05.01.01.02 (Premiums, claims and expenses by LoB) S.04.05.02.01 (Premiums, claims and expenses by country) 	50 51 52 53 53 54 55
E F. / F.1 F.2 F.3	 E.2.3 MCR E.2.4 Evolution of SCR and MCR Annex S.02.01.01.01 (MVBS) S.05.01.01.02 (Premiums, claims and expenses by LoB) S.04.05.02.01 (Premiums, claims and expenses by country) S.12.01.01.01 (Gross TP as a whole and Gross BE for different countries) 	50 51 52 53 53 54 55 56
E F. / F.1 F.2 F.3 F.4	 E.2.3 MCR E.2.4 Evolution of SCR and MCR Annex S.02.01.01.01 (MVBS) S.05.01.01.02 (Premiums, claims and expenses by LoB) S.04.05.02.01 (Premiums, claims and expenses by country) S.12.01.01.01 (Gross TP as a whole and Gross BE for different countries) S.22.01.01.01 (Impact of long-term measures) 	50 51 52 53 53 54 55 56 57
E F. / F.1 F.2 F.3 F.4 F.5	 E.2.3 MCR. E.2.4 Evolution of SCR and MCR. Annex S.02.01.01.01 (MVBS) S.05.01.01.02 (Premiums, claims and expenses by LoB). S.04.05.02.01 (Premiums, claims and expenses by country) S.12.01.01.01 (Gross TP as a whole and Gross BE for different countries). S.22.01.01.01 (Impact of long-term measures). S.23.01.01.01 (Own funds). 	50 51 52 53 53 54 55 56 57 58

This report is the Solvency and Financial Condition Report (SFCR) of Allianz Life Luxembourg S.A. (hereinafter "ALL") for the reporting period ended December 31, 2023, pursuant to article 51 of the Directive 2009/138/EC and articles 290 to 298 of the Delegated Regulation 2015/35

Executive Summary

During 2023 ALL continued its repositioning as provider of life insurance solution for ultra-high net worth individuals with a specific focus on unit-linked products. The acceleration of ALL's strategy has been materialized in three main aspects:

- Significant reduction in ALL's appetite for guaranteed rate products, and consequent decrease in its reinsured EuroFund engagements.
- Upgrade of its processes for valuation and accounting of internal funds.
- Closing of the transfer of non-strategic Life Individual and Group Life portfolios.

ALL remains sufficiently capitalized in accordance with its capital policy with a solvency ratio (with respect to the SCR) of 132% as at 31.12.2023 (compared to 135% as of 31/12/2022), which means that ALL has own funds of 138 mEUR (166 mEUR on 31.12.2022) compared to an amount of 105 mEUR of the SCR (compared to 123 mEUR as of 31.12.2022). ALL's solvency is calculated with the standard formula and the volatility adjustment; it covers all quantifiable risks. The main risks for ALL remain market and life underwriting risk.

Index of used terms and abbreviations

Abbreviation / Term	Description				
ABX	Allianz Benelux S.A.				
AFH	Actuarial function holder				
AGM	Annual General Meeting				
ALL	Allianz Life Luxembourg S.A.				
ALM	Asset liability management				
BaFin	Bundesanstalt für Finanzdienstleistungsaufsicht				
BEL	Best estimate liability				
BoD	Board of Directors				
BSCR	Basic SCR				
CAA	Commissariat aux Assurances				
CEO	Chief executive officer				
ComEx	Executive committee				
CRO	Chief risk officer				
EU	European Union				
FATCA	Foreign account tax compliance act				
GWP	Gross written premium				
IAS	International accounting standards				
ICOFR	Internal control over financial reporting process				
ICS	Internal control system				
IFRS	International financial reporting standards				
Insurance Law	Luxembourg Law of 7 December 2015 on the insurance sector				
IRCS	Integrated risk and control system				
т	Information technology				
KPI	Key performance indicator (business related)				
KRI	Key risk indicator				
LACDT	Loss absorbing capacity of deferred taxes				
LACTP	Loss absorbing capacity of technical provisions				
LoB	Lines of business				
	Luxembourg generally accepted accounting principles				
MCR	Minimum capital requirement				
MVBS	Market value balance sheet				
NFRM	Non Financial Risk Management				
ORSA	Own risk and solvency assessment				
RiCo	Risk committee				
RM	Risk margin				
SAA	Strategic asset allocation				
SCR	Solvency capital requirement (as calculated with the standard formula)				
ТР	Technical provisions				
TRA	Top risk assessment				
UHNWI	Ultra-high net worth individuals				
VA	Volatility adjustment				

A. Business and Performance

All information in this report, unless specified otherwise, refers to the financial year 2023 and is as at 31.12.2023. Where reference is made to a development compared to the previous year, this is the financial year 2022 and as at 31.12.2022.

A.1 Business

A.1.1 General information and intercompany structure

Allianz Life Luxembourg S.A. (ALL) is a life insurance undertaking subject to Luxembourg law and regulations. ALL is supervised by the *Commissariat aux Assurances* (CAA)¹ and externally audited by PwC².

Up to December 31st 2023, ALL was a direct and indirect (via Sofiholding S.A.) subsidiary of the Belgian composite insurance undertaking Allianz Benelux S.A.³ (ABX), which is an indirect subsidiary of Allianz SE. Allianz SE is a German reinsurance undertaking and mixed financial holding company subject to supervision by the *Bundesanstalt für Finanzdienstleistungsaufsicht* (BaFin)⁴.



As from January 1st 2024, ALL is 100% directly owned by ABX.

Structure as of December 31st, 2023

¹ Contact: http://www.caa.lu

² Contact: <u>https://www.pwc.lu/</u>

³ Note that Allianz Europe B.V, is a legal entity based in the Netherlands.

⁴ Contact: http://www.bafin.de



Structure as from January 1st, 2024

Figure 1: shareholding structure

ALL employs 62 employees which represent 61.6 full time equivalents.

A.1.2 Business portfolio

ALL offers two types of products via its intermediary channel on the Luxembourg market and abroad under freedom of services:

I. Traditional life products with minimum guarantee rate and profit sharing (EuroFund)

II. Unit linked products

The further products of ALL are closed for new business.

A.1.3 Market and business environment

The spectacular rise in interest rates that began in 2022 was confirmed in 2023 and has greatly disrupted the activities of life insurers in general, in particular ALL. Wealthy investors have massively turned to low-risk banking products offering attractive short-term / low-risk investment rates, leading to substantial declines in portfolios of contracts offering guaranteed interest rates and a significant decrease in appetite for unit-linked products.

Monetary policy was the guiding theme of the 2023 stock market year. The sudden surge in inflation had to be curbed by a restrictive policy in place in 2022, which continued throughout 2023. This led to bond market volatility, but the feared recessions in Europe and the United States did not materialize, and the stock markets held firm.

Despite the yield curve inversion, which is widely perceived as a potential sign of an economic slowdown, the global economy has shown remarkable resilience. Due to automatic salary indexation and the sharp increase in energy prices, companies have chosen to invest in digitization, automation, and the greening of production processes. Additionally, automatic stabilizers have helped maintain purchasing power and consumption.

During the last quarter, mainly fueled by expected interest rate cuts in 2024, the stock markets even rebounded spectacularly, primarily due to the excellent performance of the technology sector, driven by enthusiasm for artificial intelligence. Thus, the total return indices of the Euro Stoxx 50 and the S&P 500 ended with an annual performance of over 20%.

During the 2023 financial year, the increase in premiums observed in 2022 was confirmed for the non-life insurance sector in Luxembourg, unlike the life insurance sector, which again experienced a decline.

With a premium increase exceeding 9%, the non-life insurance sector continues its steady and uninterrupted progression observed over many years. Premiums reached a total of 18.8 billion euros in 2023, compared to 17.2 billion in 2022.

The total premiums of the life insurance sector ramounted to 19.0 billion euros, a decrease of 18% compared to 2022 (23.0 billion euros). The decrease in premiums is particularly pronounced for unit-linked contracts (-24%), while contracts offering a guaranteed return demonstrated a resurgence in growth (+7%) abandoned several years ago following the spectacular rise in interest rates.

A.1.4 Strategic developments

A.1.4.1 Customer segment

Within the Allianz Group, the primary assignment of ALL is to be the European hub for the life business linked to HNWI. The proposed insurance solutions target in priority HNWI clients looking for investment solutions in life insurance with a focus on an smooth transmission of the wealth to the next generation.

A.1.4.2 Strategic update

- During 2023, ALL continued its strategic reshaping, proposing exclusively Unit Linked products. The following measures have been put in place to continue this development:
- The Company finalized the transfer of its Individual Life and Group Life portfolios to Foyer Vie S.A.;
- The Company increased its exposure to unit-linked products to 83%, notably due to a reinvestment campaign from Euro Fund type supports;
- The Company established distribution partnerships with captive networks of the Allianz group.

A.1.5 Customer segments and growth products

ALL provides insurance solutions targeted in priority to HNWI clients looking for investment solutions in life insurance with a focus on a smooth transmission of the wealth to the next generation.

A.2 Underwriting Performance

The gross written premium (GWP) totalled 122 mEUR, in comparison to 179 mEUR in the previous year (-32%).

This drop is explained by ALL's persistency in its strategic repositioning towards unit-linked products and its strict underwriting discipline in a market environment where prices are pushed towards non-profitable levels.

ALL has no branches; the business abroad is carried out under freedom of services.

A.3 Investment Performance

A.3.1 Investment result and its components

ALL's assets held for investment are mainly driven by the insurance businesses (insurance assets), and mainly invested in debt instruments and short-term cash deposit.

The following table provides an overview of the asset allocation at market value within the investment portfolio.

ASSET ALLOCATION		in MEUR			in % of total	
Type of investment	31.12.2023	31.12.2022	DELTA	31.12.2023	31.12.2022	
Government Bonds	51	131	- 79	21.6%	38.0%	
Corporate Bonds	11	48	- 37	4.7%	14.0%	
Other	1	1	0	0.5%	0.2%	
Holdings in related undertakings, including participations	14	18	- 4	6.0%	5.3%	
Collective investments undertakings	-	-	-	0.0%	0.0%	
Real Estate	-	29	- 29	0.0%	8.3%	
Loans and mortgages	83	28	55	34.9%	8.1%	
Cash	77	90	- 13	32.3%	26.1%	
Total	238	344	- 106	100.0%	100.0%	

Table 1: asset allocation

The development of ALL's investment result and its components is mainly driven by the asset allocation of the investments and the respective capital market developments.

The year was again characterized by a refocusing on representative and interest-bearing investments in order to manage closely the duration gap (i.e. the difference in duration of assets – liabilities, which exposes ALL to interest rate risk⁵).

Our interest and similar income translate into a yield of 2.7% (based on the average asset base and not considering the exceptional result generated thanks to the sale of Real Estate).

⁵ See section C.2.2

A.3.2 Projections over the business planning time period

For ALL, the "financial frame" forms the basis for investment management. As a liability driven investor, ALL has to respect multiple targets and constraints.

On the basis of the liability characteristics, ALL derives a strategic asset allocation (SAA) and corresponding leeway, which, in aggregate, reflect the financial frame. The SAA proves to be relatively stable over time and is only changed in case of significant market movements, which impact the investment portfolio in such a way that key performance indicators (KPIs) or key risk indicators (KRIs) threaten to be breached.

In order to decrease the exposition to Real Estate, the SAA was updated, resulting in the sale of the Roosevelt building at the end of 2023, current Head Quarter of ALL.

B. System of Governance

This section describes the overall setup of the company's governance and risk management framework.

B.1 Fundamentals

B.1.1 Corporate bodies

ALL's corporate bodies comprise the Annual General Meeting (AGM), the shareholders' representation, and the Management. ALL is governed by a two-tier board system consisting of an Executive Committee (ComEx) and a Board of Directors (BoD). This governance is established by ALL's articles of association and the respective charters of the bodies. The main features of these three governance bodies are summarized in the following.

B.1.1.1 Annual General Meeting

The AGM takes place each year; its responsibilities include the appointment and dismissal of members of the BoD, the approval of the financial statements including the net income and the dividend.

B.1.1.2 Board of Directors

The BoD is the main deciding and controlling body of ALL, with responsibility for all matters which the articles of association do not assign to the AGM. The BoD challenges, validates, and controls any significant decision, project or initiative.

This body is scheduled to meet four times each year, and is fed by a continuous reporting coming from firstly its committees, the audit committee and the risk committee, and secondly, from the ComEx and ALL's key functions.

The BoD defines ALL's business and risk strategy as well as the corporate rules (e.g. Policies), which establish ALL's system of governance. The BoD adopts plans and budgets, approves the financial statements and determines responsibilities, composition and remuneration of the ComEx. Furthermore, it is the BoD's duty to exercise effective supervision over the activities and the management delegated to the ComEx and to monitors the activities of Compliance, as an independent control function.

B.1.1.2.1 Composition

ALL's BoD is composed of seven members:

- Kathleen VAN DEN EYNDE, Chairwoman (Representative of ABX)
- Julie BECKER, Director
- Blaise BOURGEOIS, Director (Representative of ABX) (up to December 31, 2023)
- Anthony BRADSHAW, Director
- Robert FRANSSEN, Director
- Edouard GALICIER, Director (Representative of ABX) (as from January 1st, 2024)
- Joos LOUWERIER, Director (Representative of ABX)
- Eric WINTER, Director, Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of ALL.

B.1.1.2.2 Audit Committee

Specifically, with respect to financial statements as well as ALL's internal control system (ICS) and functions, the BoD upon recommendation of its audit committee:

- verifies the validity, completeness and accuracy of the financial statements;
- verifies the validity of intragroup transactions and ensures that they are at arm's length;
- monitors the activities of the independent control functions (Actuarial and internal audit function);
- monitors the internal control over financial reporting process (ICOFR); and
- examines the quality of the work of the external auditor, their independence and remuneration.

B.1.1.2.3 Risk Committee

Specifically, with respect to risk management, the BoD upon recommendation of its risk committee:

- approves ALL's risk strategy including the risk appetite and general risk tolerance limits (expressed as KRIs), and the risk policy framework, including detailed corporate rules on specific risk management aspects;
- monitors ALL's risk profile and takes necessary actions in case of risks exceeding the risk appetite;
- monitors the activities of the independent risk management function; and
- steers the own risk and solvency assessment (ORSA) and approves the report.

B.1.1.3 Executive Committee (ComEx)

The ComEx is responsible for ALL's day-to-day management of all matters conferred upon it by the BoD, and within the limits of such delegation.

The ComEx is composed of four members:

- Eric WINTER, CEO
- Christophe HUCQUE, Head of Finance & Risk
- Régis MAHIEUX, Head of Sales & Marketing
- Thomas SAINZ, Head of Operation & IT (as from March 11, 2024)

The ComEx is scheduled to meet every two weeks; it is informed and advised by ALL's first, second and third line of defense functions and reports to the BoD. The ComEx has set up three sub-committees with the following main responsibilities:

- Disclosure committee: preparation and review of the financial statements in line with the Allianz Group standards;
- Investment committee: preparation and monitoring of the strategic asset allocation (SAA) with respect to ALL's own investments, approval of investment guidelines and asset manager mandates, approval of minor transactions;
- Underwriting committee: proposing decisions, and executing them, with respect to validation of new partner on-boarding (broker, custodian, asset manager), reviewing and approving specific business / tenders.

B.1.1.4 Role of ABX

ABX as shareholder of ALL is responsible for the management of the Allianz business on a regional level, including the business of ALL. Furthermore, ABX provides several services to ALL to use economies of scale and skill, e.g. investment management with respect to ALL's own investments (see section B.7.3).

B.1.2 Key functions

ALL has implemented the required Solvency II key functions, which form part of the second (actuarial function, compliance function and risk management function) and third line of defense (internal audit) of ALL's system of governance. Furthermore, and in line with the Allianz Group governance, ALL has defined two further functions as key functions of the first line of defense: accounting and reporting as well as legal.

Note that the description of the risk, compliance, audit and actuarial function can be found in the dedicated sections (respectively B.3.3.2, B.4.3, B.5, B.6).

To ensure an effective internal control system, the ComEx and BoD need to inform and consult the affected key functions before taking material decisions; in case of a veto, the issue is escalated to the respective ABX or Group key function. Furthermore, the key functions have to cooperate and exchange necessary information and advice among themselves.

B.1.3 Policy framework

ALL has established a policy framework, i.e. a set of corporate rules, which is consistent with the policy framework of Allianz Group and subject to yearly review. The framework comprises the ALL code of conduct as well as eleven policies with high level stipulations, which are further detailed by standards and functional rules. The policies relate to the key functions as well as further significant topics and include:

- Accounting and reporting policy;
- Actuarial policy;
- Audit policy;
- Capital management policy;
- Compliance policy;
- Fit and proper policy;
- Governance and control policy;
- Legal policy;
- Outsourcing policy;

- Remuneration policy;
- Risk policy.

B.1.4 Remuneration

ALL has established a remuneration system on the basis of its remuneration policy, which is consistent with the Group's principles.

B.1.4.1 Principles

ALL's compensation system is appropriate, transparent and promotes a sustainable development of the undertaking.

To ensure appropriateness of (individual) remuneration and general pay levels, vertical and horizontal benchmarking is performed within Allianz Group, ABX and ALL. As regards horizontal appropriateness of pay levels, base salaries, benefits and variable components are regularly benchmarked against the market position with peers. The remuneration awards must not threaten the adequacy of ALL's capital base.

Base salary is the fixed remuneration component, which rewards the respective role and responsibilities, and provides for a stable source of income. The fixed component represents a sufficiently high proportion of the total remuneration to avoid the employees being overly dependent on the variable components and/or should allow for full flexibility in variable compensation.

Where employees are, depending on their seniority, granted variable remuneration, it is designed such to avoid excessive risk taking, conflicts of interest and risks which exceed the risk tolerance limits of the company. This is achieved through the evaluation of both ALL's performance and the employee's individual performance according to both financial and non-financial criteria; the latter include compliance with in- and external requirements. Furthermore, to align the employee's interests with ALL's long-term sustainable interests, variable compensation may be deferred, restricted, cancelled or claimed back. Variable compensation may take the form of cash or shares of Allianz SE, the parent undertaking of Allianz Group.

B.1.4.2 Board of Directors

BoD members are not remunerated as such (qualitate qua), where they are already remunerated for another position within Allianz Group, which forms the basis for their belonging to the BoD.

A specific remuneration is hence reserved to directors, who are external to Allianz Group. For these, the remuneration is composed of two parts:

- A fixed component for the membership in a BoD, and
- A moderate attendance fee to encourage attention.

B.1.4.3 Executive employees

Executive employees of ALL, including the members of the ComEx, receive a combination of fixed and variable remuneration components, where the proportion of the variable remuneration in the total remuneration depends on the level of seniority.

B.1.4.4 Control process

For each executive employee, an annual performance management process is in place. It starts with the agreement of "what" and "how" related targets for the financial year, which are reviewed during the year, and concludes with the target achievement assessment at the end of the year. Thereby quantitative and qualitative aspects of the individual performance including behavioral components are considered.

B.1.4.5 Related party transactions

Apart from the dividend payment and the reception of services, ALL has not carried out any material transactions with its shareholder ABX, and none with respect to other persons who exercise a significant influence on the undertaking, or with members of the BoD and ComEx (with the exception of the remuneration outlined above).

B.2 Fit and proper requirements

B.2.1 Scope

ALL has in place fitness and propriety requirements for holders of positions in the BoD, the ComEx and of key functions (see section B.1.2).

B.2.2 Criteria

A person is considered fit (Fitness) if their professional qualifications, knowledge and experience are adequate to enable sound and prudent fulfillment of their role. This includes common behaviors and values as set out in the Allianz people attributes including leadership experience and management skills, as well as the relevant and proven qualifications, knowledge and experience for the specific role. With respect to the ComEx and beyond the individual fitness, also the corporate body as a whole must be fit, i.e. sufficiently experienced and skilled.

A person is considered proper (Propriety) if they are of good repute and integrity, depending on their character, personal behavior and business conduct, including criminal, financial and supervisory aspects. A proper person is able to provide for the honesty and financial soundness required for them to fulfill their position in a sound and prudent manner.

B.2.3 Assessment procedure

Fitness and propriety of a function holder are assessed both initially before appointment and regularly in the annual performance management process (see section B.1.14). Initially a candidate has to submit several documents to ALL's human resources function and legal function, which demonstrate their fitness (e.g. curriculum vitae) and propriety (e.g. criminal records). Furthermore, the human resources function carries out background checks.

B.3 Risk management system including own risk and solvency assessment

B.3.1 Risk Management framework

B.3.1.1 General

As life insurance undertaking, which assumes risks from our clients, we consider risk management to be a core competency and integral part of our business. ALL has implemented a risk management framework, which is compliant with the regulatory requirements of Solvency II and consistent with the framework of Allianz Group. ALL's risk management framework covers all businesses and operations in proportion to the inherent risks of their activities, ensuring that risks across the company are consistently identified, analyzed, assessed, and managed. The primary goals of the risk management framework are:

- promotion of an adequate risk culture, supported by a strong risk governance structure;
- consistent and proportional application of an integrated risk capital framework, which to the extent possible quantifies inherent risks, and thereby protects our capital base and supports effective capital management;
- integration of risk considerations and capital into management and decision-making processes by attributing risk and allocating capital to business segments and products.

ALL calculates its risk capital, the regulatory solvency capital requirement (SCR), with the standard formula.

B.3.1.2 Risk management pillars

ALL's risk management is based on the following four pillars:

- Risk identification and underwriting: a robust system of risk identification and underwriting forms the foundation for adequate risk management decisions. Supporting activities include standards for underwriting, valuation methods, individual transaction and new product approvals, emerging- and top-risk assessments, liquidity risk and scenario analysis, amongst others.
- Risk strategy and risk appetite: ALL's strategy defines the risk appetite consistent with the business strategy and Allianz Group's risk strategy. It ensures that rewards are appropriate based on the risks taken and the capital required.
- Risk reporting and monitoring: ALL's comprehensive qualitative and quantitative risk monitoring and reporting framework provides management with the transparency needed to assess whether ALL's actual risk profile remains within the approval limits, and to identify emerging issues and risks quickly.
- Communication and transparency: transparent risk disclosure provides the basis for communicating ALL's strategy and performance to internal and external stakeholders, ensuring a sustainable positive impact on valuation and financing. It also strengthens the risk awareness and risk culture throughout the company.

B.3.2 Strategy and objectives

The risk strategy is a core element of ALL risk management framework. ALL's risk strategy, risk management principles and overall risk appetite are coordinated with, and derived from, ALL's business strategy, and consistent with Allianz Group's risk strategy.

The risk strategy consists of medium- to long-term objectives and initiatives, which may have a shorter time horizon and are more regularly refined in response to inter alia competition and markets developments. Finally, the risk strategy is operationalized through key risk indicators or limits as part of the risk appetite, which allow for the implementation monitoring of the strategy. The risk appetite is defined with respect to all material qualitative and quantitative risks. This includes setting target ratings for top risks (Top Risk Assessment – TRA), establishing minimum and target capital ratios and defining quantitative limits including for liquidity. Adherence to the risk appetite is enacted through dedicated risk management processes.

The risk strategy is regularly, at least annually, reviewed and approved by the ComEx, the RiCo and ultimately the BoD.

B.3.3 Risk governance

ALL's risk governance comprises the organisational structure and the respective roles and responsibilities with respect to the risk management processes as established by ALL's corporate rules including the risk policy framework and the risk strategy.

B.3.3.1 ComEx and BoD

ALL's BoD is ultimately responsible for the monitoring of ALL's risk profile, the setting of the risk strategy and the approval of the ORSA. For these and the discussion of further risk related issues with management including ComEx, the BoD has established the RiCo. The RiCo regularly monitors, at least on a quarterly basis, ALL's risk profile including top risks and the development of key risk indicators (e.g. solvency ratio, liquidity intensity ratio), as well as the implementation of the main risk initiatives.

ALL's ComEx is tasked with the implementation of the strategies and the day-to-day management of the company. Within this framework, the ComEx is responsible for the risk management; this includes proposing the risk strategy and ORSA to the BoD.

B.3.3.2 Risk management function

ALL has implemented a risk management function on the basis of the ALL risk policy as key function of the second line (see section B.4.2), which is headed by the Chief Risk Officer (CRO). The CRO reports to the Head of Finance and Risk in the ComEx and is a non-voting guest of the BoD's Risk and Audit Committees.

The risk management function carries out the independent risk oversight, and supports the ComEx and BoD, including the RiCo, by performing various analyses communicating risk related information and implementing risk related initiatives of the ComEx and/or BoD including RiCo.

The risk management function bears the operational responsibility for the risk management processes, in particular:

- Reviewing consistency of ALL's business and risk strategy;
- Developing the risk policy framework in line with the risk strategy and consistently with the Group's risk policy framework;
- Monitoring the risk profile and its adherence to the risk appetite as well as communicating any breaches to ComEx and BoD including RiCo.

ALL's risk management function is supported by the other second line key functions of ALL (actuarial and compliance functions), which also take care of the management of specific risks such as those relating to reserving (underwriting risk), legal and compliance (operational and reputational risks).

B.3.4 Risk Management Processes

ALL has established for all material quantified and non-quantified risks a comprehensive risk management process which incorporates (i) risk identification, (ii) risk assessment, (iii) risk response and control activities, (iv) risk monitoring, and (v) risk reporting. The process is implemented and conducted within the confines of a clearly defined risk strategy and risk appetite, and is periodically assessed for adequacy.

B.3.4.1 Solvency Assessment

The solvency assessment is a comprehensive assessment of all risks inherent to the business in order to determine whether current and future capital will be sufficient to ensure ongoing solvency against these risks. In this respect, the solvency assessment comprises the entirety of the processes and procedures employed to identify, assess, monitor, report and manage ALL's risks and solvency. The solvency assessment constitutes ALL's ORSA.

The solvency assessment is performed from both a regulatory as well as an economic perspective ("management's assessment"). All material risks are translated into SCR and compared to the own funds. In addition, ALL applies stress tests for assessing its regulatory solvency under various capital market and other risk scenarios.

With regards to non-quantified risks, the solvency assessment shall cover these risks in a qualitative way by ensuring they are sufficiently mitigated under existing risk management measures in place (e.g. internal controls).

ALL's ComEx and BoD regularly discuss the solvency assessment, take appropriate actions based on the findings and report the outcome to the CAA.

B.3.4.2 SCR calculation

ALL calculates its solvency with respect to all material risks of the risk categories market, credit, business and operational risk, as well as underwriting risk, on a quarterly basis. The calculation of the SCR is based on the standard formula. Furthermore, ALL applies the volatility adjustment (VA) for calculating its technical provisions.

B.3.4.3 Top Risk Assessment (TRA)

ALL performs a TRA on a quarterly basis. The TRA is a periodic analysis of all material quantified and non-quantified risks to identify and remediate significant threats to financial results, operational viability or the delivery of key strategic objectives. In the TRA, single top risks or risk concentrations are assessed and their actual risk value is compared to the risk appetite or target risk value.

B.3.4.4 Ad-hoc stress scenarios

ALL's regularly conducts ad-hoc stress scenario analysis and presents the results to the ComEx and/or BoD including the RiCo, which may decide on mitigation actions in case the risks exceed the risk appetite. Such analysis consists of identifying, evaluating and responding to a dynamic set of relatively specific forward-looking scenarios. The analysis complements the static standard formula stress scenarios and comparatively formal TRA process by providing a timely evaluation of potential risk events and approximation of their impacts. Results from the ad-hoc stress scenario process are used to evaluate whether the given scenarios reside within the risk appetite.

B.3.4.5 Further risk management processes

ALL has established further processes for the management of specific risks. These relate to inter alia underwriting risk (underwriting approval process), market risk (asset-liability and investment risk management), liquidity risk management as well as operational risk (internal risk and control system) and non-Financial risks.

B.3.5 Own risk and Solvency Assessment (ORSA)

The ORSA is a comprehensive assessment of all risks inherent in ALL's business to determine whether current and future capital or own funds will be sufficient to ensure sustained solvency in the face of these risks.

The ORSA is the combination of all processes deployed to cover the identification, assessment, monitoring, management, and reporting of all short term and long-term risks faced by ALL. Its purpose is to provide ongoing and prospective insight into the resilience of the undertaking, either under potential adverse events, or as a result of a chosen business strategy. The aspect of risk resilience is translated into solvency and liquidity requirements that have to be met at all times. Furthermore, the coherence between risk strategy (risk appetite), business strategy and capital management is discussed and established in the ORSA.

While the ORSA is largely based on the regulatory solvency calculation and also aims to quantify the risks to the extent possible, it goes beyond such calculation in several regards by:

- analysing the tops risks, including non-quantifiable risks, in a qualitative way and subjecting them to active risk steering processes (TRA, see section B.3.4.3);
- projecting the solvency beyond the regulatory one year horizon, i.e. according to the business planning period of ALL three years;
- calculating the solvency in stress scenarios; and
- assessing the adequacy of the regulatory solvency by comparing the underlying assumptions to the economic risk profile of ALL.

While the ORSA as a process is performed on an ongoing basis, the results are only reported annually (ORSA report).

The ORSA process is owned ALL's BoD, supported by:

- the BoD's RiCo, challenging the process and its outcome,
- the ComEx, providing input for the assessment of top risks,
- ALL's risk management function, charged by the RiCo to implement the process on an ongoing basis, leading to the annual ORSA report.

The outcome of the ORSA process is reported to all relevant stakeholders, and influences, as the case may be, the setting of the business and risk strategy including capital management.

B.4 Internal control system

B.4.1 Overview

B.4.1.1 Pillars of the Internal control system

The internal control system (ICS) of ALL comprises the entirety of activities undertaken to continuously review the effectiveness of the relevant processes and procedures (including operations and reporting), their coherence and potential actions to timely rectify deficiencies. The ICS is based on the following pillars:

- safeguarding and segregation of duties to avoid potential conflicts of interest (e.g. separation of the exercise of controls from their testing);
- material decisions are taken by at least two representatives (four-eyes principle);
- application of the three lines governance model (see section B.4.2);

- application of the internationally recognised control framework of COSO⁶ for financial reporting and parts of the COBIT⁷ model throughout Allianz Group;
- application of effective process-level controls to ensure operational effectiveness.

B.4.1.2 Non-Financial Risk Management (NFRM) framework

The process-level controls are part of the Non-Financial Risk Management framework of Allianz Group. This new framework, replacing since 2023 the Integrated risk and control system guidelines (IRCS), ensures that effective controls or other risk mitigation measures exist for all material operational risks from these areas: financial reporting including the calculation of the SCR, compliance, IT, information security, underwriting and products, investments as well as protection and resilience. The controls are embedded in the operational and organisational set-up and subject to regular reviews.

Each year, ALL selects those risks from an annually updated catalogue provided by Allianz Group, which are applicable to ALL's business, and which are material (e.g. payment of insurance policy claims to fraud or outdated account). Subsequently, for each applicable, material risk, a preventive or detective control is implemented (e.g. check of client data before payment).

B.4.2 Three lines governance model

B.4.2.1 Functions and their responsibilities

Based on its governance and control policy, and consistent with Allianz Group's governance, ALL has established the Three lines governance model⁸, which clearly distinguishes different levels of control with graduated control responsibilities.

The first line is integrated in day-to-day operating business responsible for both risks and returns, and consists of management, risk control, and risk management activities. Specifically, these include:

- assessing opportunities and risks at an operational level (this is a part of risk assumption, e.g. when ALL calculates premiums and assesses the risks accepted);
- identifying and implementing methods, models, reporting formats or other control standards to help optimize the balance of risk and opportunities;
- participating in business decisions.

⁶ Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

⁷ Control Objectives for Information and Related Technology.

⁸ Formerly referred to as Three lines of defense model.

In general, any function not explicitly classified as second or third line is considered part of the first line.

The second line consists in reviewing and independently monitoring our day-to-day risk assumption and the first line's control activities. These tasks are carried out by ALL's key functions Actuarial, Compliance, Legal and Risk Management. Activities include:

- examining the adequacy of the NFRM;
- independent identification, assessment and reporting of risks;
- advising on strategies on how to mitigate risks.

To enable the second line functions to perform their duties, ALL's governance and control policy vests them with the following rights:

- independence from first line functions in terms of reporting lines and compensation;
- direct reporting line to the responsible member of the ComEx and unrestricted access to the entire ComEx and the BoD;
- veto right for good cause, with the effect that the business decision in question must be escalated within ALL or Allianz Group;
- unrestricted access to necessary information.

The third line provides independent assurance across the first and second line. Specifically, its activities include:

- independently assessing effectiveness and efficiency of the ICS;
- reporting the results of the assessment to ComEx and BoD (Audit Committee).

All third line activities are exclusively performed by ALL's internal audit function (key function).

B.4.2.2 Relationship between functions

Second and third line functions as well as the head of accounting and reporting and Legal (first line key function) are subject to instructions from the ComEx and BoD only. The second line functions are routinely involved in the decision-making processes regarding material decisions, in that they provide advice to ComEx and BoD. To ensure their continuous involvement, they are non-voting guests in the ComEx sub-committees, the Disclosure, the Underwriting and the Investment Committees.

The second line functions are separated from each other and the internal audit function. There are no instruction rights or reporting obligations between any of these functions. The second line functions are included in the audit programme and hence subject to the periodic assessment of the internal audit function regarding adequacy and effectiveness. Nevertheless, all the named functions cooperate closely and exchange information to the extent permitted.

B.4.3 Compliance Function

ALL has implemented a compliance function as key function of the second line (see section B.4.2) on the basis of the ALL compliance policy, which is headed by the Compliance Officer who is a non-voting guest of the BoD's Committee

The compliance function's tasks comprise according to ALL's compliance policy:

- risk identification and assessment with respect to compliance risks (operational risks);
- advice to ComEx and BoD on ALL's compliance with external requirements and changes thereof (legal change monitoring);
- monitoring of compliance with external requirements;
- setting up of the compliance plan;
- performance of compliance investigations, incident handling as well as compliance reporting.

The compliance function develops, implements and oversees the compliance framework for the assigned compliance risk areas; these comprise:

- anti-Bribery and corruption;
- anti-money laundering and counter-terrorism financing;
- economic sanctions;
- capital markets compliance (including insider trading);
- customer protection (including insurance distribution directive and conflicts of interests);
- antitrust;
- foreign account tax compliance act (FATCA), the common reporting standard and DAC
 6;
- complaint Management.

B.5 Internal audit function

B.5.1 Implementation

ALL has implemented an internal audit function on the basis of the internal audit policy as key function of the third line (see section B.4.2), which is headed by the Chief Audit Executive.

The Chief Audit Executive reports to the Chairman of the ComEx and is a non-voting guest of the BoD's Audit and Risk Committees.

The main task of internal audit is to support ALL to accomplish its objectives by using a systematic disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management, control and governance processes of ALL, including those of service providers, to which ALL has outsourced activities (see section B.7). This is achieved by independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed to add value and improve the organization's operations, which is based on a comprehensive, risk-oriented audit plan and on management's request or due to new risk developments (unplanned audits). For each internal audit performed, the function prepares a report addressed to the auditee and the Chairman of the ComEx. Significant findings are also reported to the BoD's Audit Committee and to the internal audit function of Allianz Group. The audit report includes recommendation to mitigate the findings, and the implementation of mitigation actions is monitored by the internal audit function.

B.5.2 Organizational independence

ALL's internal audit function has high organizational independence, which corresponds to its functions as third – and last – line. This means that no undue influence can be exercised over the function, e.g. in terms of reporting, the setting of objectives or targets, compensation or other means. The internal audit function must avoid conflicts of interest in fact or appearance.

The independence of ALL's internal audit function is further supported by the reporting lines to the Chairman of the ComEx, the BoD's Audit Committee and the Chairwoman of the BoD, as well as to the internal audit functions of ABX and Allianz Group.

B.6 Actuarial Function

ALL has implemented an actuarial function on the basis of the ALL actuarial policy as key function of the second line (see section B.4.2), which is headed by the Actuarial Function Holder (AFH). The AFH reports to the Head of Finance and Risk in the ComEx and is a non-voting guest of the BoD's Risk and Audit Committees.

ALL's actuarial function has the following tasks according to the actuarial policy:

- calculation of technical reserves for accounting and regulatory purposes (IFRS and Lux GAAP);
- pricing and profitability oversight (including advising on the underwriting policy and adequacy of reinsurance arrangements);
- support of business planning, reporting and result monitoring;
- reserving oversight, coordination of the calculation of technical provisions according to Solvency II; and
- contribution to the effective implementation of the risk management system.

B.7 Outsourcing

B.7.1 Overview

The outsourcing of functions or services essential to the operations of ALL directly affect our customers' interests. In order to appropriately safeguard these interests, certain principles and processes (requirements) have to be adhered to within ALL in order to adequately assess, mitigate, and control the risks associated with outsourcing and to ensure business continuity in case of adverse events or termination. To establish these principles and processes, ALL has implemented an outsourcing policy, for which ALL's legal function is responsible.

Outsourcing is the transfer of a service or function, which otherwise ALL would need to perform, to a service provider within or outside Allianz Group, which is material in scope and time and relates to:

- an activity directly relating to ALL's core business (e.g. the calculation of taxes) referred to as "simple outsourcing";
- a critical or important service, which is essential for ALL to fulfil its obligations (as defined in ALL's policy, e.g. investment management of insurance assets), or a key function (see section B.1.2) – referred to as "critical outsourcing".

The fundamental principle applying to outsourcing is that ALL remains ultimately responsible – in particular vis-à-vis its customers – for the performance of the outsourced services or functions. Therefore, the outsourced services or functions must be duly performed, remain integrated into ALL's risk management system and internal control system, and remain accessible for ALL's key functions, ALL's external auditor and ALL's supervisory authority CAA.

B.7.2 Requirements

On the basis of ALL's outsourcing policy, each proposal must go through the subsequent processes or phases and comply with the respective principles:

- Decision phase: each outsourcing proposal requires a business plan from the business owner, a risk assessment as well as a due diligence of the service provider;
- Implementation phase: the outsourcing agreement must provide for sufficient access to data, disclosure of relevant issues, protection of confidential information and the provider's cooperation with the CAA;
- Operational phase: the business owner must monitor the performance of the outsourced services or functions according to the agreed KPIs and take appropriate actions if needed;
- Exit phase: the business owner must ensure the proper in-sourcing of the services or functions before effective termination.

B.7.3 Transactions

ALL has in place four critical outsourcing transactions with respect to critical or important services. More details are shown in the subsequent table.

#	Service or function	Location of provider	Intragroup?
1	Investment management (for ALL's insurance and own assets)	Belgium	Yes (ABX)
2	IT: infrastructure for policy records management	Luxembourg	No
3	IT: infrastructure for business continuity planning and disaster recovery	Luxembourg	No
4	Insurance portfolio management	Luxembourg	No

 Table 2: Outsourcing transactions

B.8 Any other information

A structured process is in place for the regular review of the system of governance of Allianz Group and ALL. The process is fed by self-assessments from the entities of Allianz Group and assessments of the key functions. Starting at the level of the Group, this process leads to regular adjustments of the system of governance, in particular the policies (see section B.1.3).

Also based on the above process, the following material change occurred to ALL's system of governance:

- Implementation of the NFRM framework in replacement of the former IRCS (see section Error! Reference source not found.).

Also based on the above regular review, ALL's system of governance is deemed adequate to the nature, scale and complexity of the risks inherent in ALL's business.

C. Risk profile

ALL measures and steers risks predominantly (for additional risk indicators and limits, see B.3.2) based on the regulatory solvency calculation according to Art. 104 of the Luxembourg Law of 7 December 2015 on the insurance sector (Insurance Law); ALL's own funds or capital must be at least as high as the solvency capital requirement (SCR) or risk capital, which ALL calculates with the standard formula. The SCR measures the potential adverse developments of own funds in pre-defined scenarios.

This section provides an overview of the overall risk profile of ALL, including the risks shown in the subsequent figure, which are quantified with the SCR in the standard formula. Further risks not included in the standard formula are strategic and reputational as well as liquidity risk. The categorization of risks into risk categories and risk types is based on the risk taxonomy according to ALL's risk policy.

In the standard formula SCR calculation, the SCR of all quantifiable risk categories (but one) is aggregated, thereby reflecting diversification effects, to the Basic SCR. To this, the SCR for operational risk is added. Subsequently, the loss absorbing capacity of deferred taxes (LACDT) and of technical provisions (LACTP) are considered, resulting in the total SCR. ALL's SCR and Basic SCR is dominated by market and life (underwriting) risks. By contrast, the SCR for health and non-life (underwriting) risks is zero, as ALL is not active in these business segments.



Figure 2: SCR breakdown in mEUR

ALL invests its insurance assets (for which ALL bears the financial risks) in accordance with the prudent person principle of Art. 114 of the Insurance Law and considering the sustainability, Environmental, Social and Governance impacts in accordance with the Delegated Regulation (EU) 2021/1256 (supplementing Delegated Regulation (EU) 2021/35) and the respective Allianz requirements as follows:

- all assets are invested so as to ensure the quality, security, liquidity, profitability and availability of the investment portfolio as a whole; thereby, the nature and duration of the insurance liabilities is considered in the SAA;
- ALL only invests in assets for which it can properly identify, measure, monitor, control, and report the involved risks and integrate them into the solvency assessment.
- All investment-related integration activities regarding sustainability by Allianz Group entities shall be in-line with the Principles to the greatest possible extent.

C.1 Life underwriting risk

Life underwriting risk is defined as the risk of unexpected financial losses due to the inadequacy of reserves or due to the unpredictability of mortality, longevity or lapses.

Subsequently, these risks can be defined as:

- Mortality risk is associated with the risk of losses due to temporary or permanent changes in mortality rates;
- Longevity risk is the risk of losses due to temporary or permanent changes in survival rates;
- Lapse risk is the risk of temporary or permanent changes in lapses of policyholders, related to all types of policyholder behaviour.
- Expenses risk is the risk of losses due to an increase in the amount of expenses on insurance products and an increase in the inflation rate.

Life underwriting risk is ALL's dominant risk category, driven by lapse risk. More concretely, ALL's largest risk is that lapses of policyholders develop differently than expected, and therefore ALL earns fewer fees from the business than planned. The exposure towards longevity, mortality and expenses risks is rather limited due to the ALL's product mix.

C.2 Market risk

Market risk is the risk of unexpected losses arising due to changes in market prices or parameters influencing market prices, as well as the resultant risk from options and guarantees that are embedded in contracts. In particular, these include changes driven by equity prices, interest rates, real estate prices, exchange rates, credit spreads and implied volatilities, or from changes to the net worth of assets and liabilities in related undertakings driven by market parameters. By that it also includes changes in market prices due to a worsening of market liquidity.

Market risk is the second largest risk category for ALL, to which it is both directly and indirectly exposed. The direct exposure comes from insurance assets for policyholders and those covering own funds, for which ALL bears the financial risk (market and credit risk).⁹ According to the respective insurance policies, ALL promises a certain minimum yield on the premiums paid by the policyholders, which it needs to earn from the assets. Such business is no longer pursed by ALL as core business.

The indirect exposure comes from the unit linked and EuroFund business, for which the financial risks are borne by the policyholder (selecting the assets of the funds) or by ALL's reinsurer. ALL is nevertheless indirectly exposed to the value of the assets, as it determines the amount of fees, which ALL can earn.

The material risk types of the risk category market risk for ALL are equity risk, interest rate risk and spread risk, whereas currency risk and concentration risk are immaterial for ALL.

C.2.1 Equity risk

Equity risk is the risk that the net position of the assets and liabilities is adversely affected by changes in equity prices.

ALL holds no equity as insurance assets. The equity risk is rather driven by the participations in the policyholders' unit linked funds, which represent ALL's future fee claims. Where ALL has no information on the exact allocation of assets in the funds (e.g. fixed income), the most prudent (i.e. highest) risk type is assumed for prudential reasons. This is the SCR for equity type 2.

C.2.2 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the net position of the assets and liabilities is adversely affected by changes in interest rates. ALL is exposed to this where the policies include a minimum yield on the premiums paid by the policyholders, which it needs to earn from the assets. This can result in a loss if maturing fixed income assets need to be reinvested prior to the maturity of the policies (technical provisions), they are backing, and the interest rates for such assets have declined.

As ALL predominantly carries out unit linked and reinsured Eurofund business, it is not materially exposed to this risk. With respect to the remaining business, ALL has in place an asset liability management (ALM) for insurance assets to manage interest rate risks.

¹⁰ See Table 1.

C.2.3 Real estate risk

Real estate risk is the risk of losses due to changes in the market value of real estate or property.

ALL became materially exposed to this risk after the transfer of the non-strategic Life Individual and Group Life portfolios as it held real estate of relative considerable size as insurance asset. The update in ALL's SAA and the sale of Roosevelt building led consequently to a material disinvestment reduction of the exposure in such assets. (see section A.3.1 and f.)

C.2.4 Spread risk

Spread risk is the risk of losses due to decreases in the market value of fixed income assets due to the widening of spreads at unchanged credit quality. In other words, spread risk arises from fluctuations of the market premium for liquidity and credit risk of certain debtors over the risk-free interest rate. Note that government bonds (where a European Union (EU) member state is the debtor) are not subject to spread risk.

ALL is materially exposed to this risk as bonds and loans form a significant part of insurance assets, even if the spread risk has decreased compared to 2021. Note that in case of a stable and well-matched asset-liability portfolio, spread risk does not lead to actual losses if the bonds are held until maturity (when the principal is paid back). Therefore, ALL's ALM aims to prevent that spread risk leads to effective losses.

C.3 Credit risk

Credit or counterparty default risk is the risk of unexpected losses in the market value of assets due to deterioration in the credit quality of counterparties (debtors) including their failure to meet payment obligations or due to nonperformance of instruments (i.e. payment overdue).

Different SCR apply to type 1 and 2 exposures. Type 1 relates to reinsurance arrangements, deposits with ceding undertakings and cash at bank, which are assumed to be not diversified, but rated. Type 2 relates to all other credit exposures, which are assumed to be not rated but diversified, including loans, mortgages and receivables (e.g. from policyholders).

For ALL, type 1 is the main credit risk and relates predominantly to cash at BNP Paribas S.A. with an A+ rating and Société Générale Bank and Trust S.A. with an A rating.

ALL manages this risk on the basis of its liquidity risk reporting; ALL is not materially exposed to this risk due to the high liquidity of its assets (in particular bonds) and the low liquidity of its technical provisions (liabilities).

C.4 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk of losses due to the inability to meet current or future payment obligations due to the lack of available cash or lack of assets that can be quickly converted into cash. This risk arises from mismatches in timing between incoming and outgoing cash flows. It is not reflected in the standard formula SCR calculation as it doesn't result in a loss in own funds.

C.5 Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of unexpected losses resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes and systems, from human misbehavior or errors or from external events. It includes legal and compliance risks.

These risks are managed in general through ALL's ICS and IRCS (see section B.4). Legal and compliance risks in particular are managed through the processes of these two key functions of ALL (see section B.4.3).

C.6 Other material risks

Other material risks, which are not quantified in the SCR, are reputational and strategic risks. These are managed through structured processes at the level of Allianz Group, ABX and ALL and are not deemed significant for ALL after mitigation measures.

C.7 Any other information

All material information regarding the risk profile has already been provided in the previous chapters.

With respect to events with impact on the risk profile which happened after the financial year, and based on the information available to us as of end of March 2023, ALL expects to continue to be sufficiently capitalized.

ALL has continued to face lapses on the Eurofund portfolio which have been mostly reinvested in Unit Linked products, in line with ALL strategic reorientation. ALL is carefully monitoring those lapses to ensure that ALL will continue to be sufficiently capitalized with a solvency ratio above the regulatory requirement.

D. Valuation for Solvency purposes

For solvency purposes, ALL has to establish in accordance with Art. 98 and f. of the Insurance Law a market value balance sheet (MVBS), which follows a different methodology than the Luxembourg generally accepted accounting principles (Lux GAAP) with respect to recognition, measurement and valuation of assets and liabilities.

D.1 Valuation of assets

The subsequent table provides an overview of the reconciliation between the different values of assets in MVBS (Solvency II value) and Lux GAAP (Statutory accounts value).

			Solvency II value	Statutory accounts value
			C0010	C0020
Goodwill		R0010		
Deferred acqu	isition costs	R0020		
Intangible assets		R0030		
Deferred tax assets		R0040	0.00	
Pension bene	fit surplus	R0050		
Property, plant & equipment held for own use		R0060	0.00	
Investments (other than assets held for index-linked and unit-linked contracts)		R0070	81,216,580.00	83,738,223.00
Prope	erty (other than for own use)	R0080	0.00	
Holdin	ngs in related undertakings, including participations	R0090	16,545,000.00	14,308,046.0
Equiti	es	R0100		
	Equities - listed	R0110		
	Equities - unlisted	R0120		
Bonds	5	R0130	63,537,250.00	68,624,044.00
	Government Bonds	R0140	49,455,650.00	56,520,425.0
	Corporate Bonds	R0150	14,081,600.00	12,103,619.00
	Structured notes	R0160		
	Collateralised securities	R0170		
Collec	tive Investments Undertakings	R0180	0.00	
Deriva	atives	R0190	0.00	
Depos	sits other than cash equivalents	R0200	1,134,330.00	806,133.00
Other	investments	R0210		
Assets held for	or index-linked and unit-linked contracts	R0220	4,420,965,470.00	4,513,504,006.00
Loans and mo	ns and mortgages		83,048,770.00	84,213,099.0
Loans	on policies	R0240	0.00	
Loans	and mortgages to individuals	R0250		
Other	loans and mortgages	R0260	83,048,770.00	84,213,099.0
Reinsurance r	recoverables from:	R0270	940,383,630.00	851,081,402.0
Non-li	fe and health similar to non-life	R0280		
	Non-life excluding health	R0290		
	Health similar to non-life	R0300		
Life ar	nd health similar to life, excluding health and index-linked and unit-linked	R0310	940,206,130.00	851,081,402.0
	Health similar to life	R0320		
	Life excluding health and index-linked and unit-linked	R0330	940,206,130.00	851,081,402.0
Life in	dex-linked and unit-linked	R0340	177,500.00	
Deposits to cedants		R0350		
Insurance and intermediaries receivables		R0360	1,248,570.00	267,610.0
Reinsurance receivables		R0370	0.00	
Receivables (trade, not insurance)		R0380	4,376,170.00	7,658,978.0
Own shares (h	held directly)	R0390		
Amounts due	in respect of own fund items or initial fund called up but not yet paid in	R0400		
Cash and cas	h equivalents	R0410	79,825,240.00	76,681,996.0
Any other ass	eets, not elsewhere shown	R0420		
Total assets		R0500	5,611,064,430.00	5,617,145,314.0

Table 3: Reconciliation of assets between Lux GAAP and Solvency II

In principle assets are valued at fair value in the MVBS and at amortized costs in Lux GAAP.

Measurement at fair value means the following: when quoted prices in active markets are available for the valuation of investments, those prices are used in the MVBS. An active market thereby follows the definition of IFRS 13, Appendix A where an active market is a market in which transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis. When quoted prices in active markets for the investments are not available, other valuation methods are used. These valuation techniques are consistent with the valuation techniques listed in IFRS 13 and include the following:

- Market approach: Prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions involving identical or comparable assets or liabilities.
- Cost approach: Amount that would currently be required to replace the service capacity of an asset (replacement cost).
- Income approach: Conversion of future amounts such as cash flows or income to a single current amount (present value technique).

D.1.1 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment held for own use includes tangible assets, which are intended for permanent use and property held by ALL for its own use. It also includes property for own use under construction.

The difference between Lux GAAP and MVBS values is due to the different measurement basis, i.e. amortized cost in Lux GAAP vs. fair value in the MVBS.

D.1.2 Investments (other than assets held for index-linked and unit-linked funds)

Investments comprise ALL's insurance assets (covering technical provisions, under which ALL bears the financial risks) and own assets (covering own funds). In each MVBS line for the investments, the valuation techniques used are described.

D.1.2.1 Property (other than for own use)

Property is valued similar to property for own use (see section D.1.1).

D.1.2.2 Holdings in related undertakings

In Lux GAAP, holdings in related undertakings are valued at cost. In the MVBS, such holdings in related undertakings are valued on the basis of the adjusted equity method in accordance with ALL's share of the excess of assets over liabilities of the related undertaking's MVBS. Where this is not feasible, the equity method can be used, i.e. the participation value is based
on ALL's share of the excess of assets over liabilities of the related undertaking's IFRS balance sheet (where goodwill and other intangible assets are valued at zero).

D.1.2.3 Bonds

This category comprises government and corporate bonds. Government bonds are bonds issued by public authorities, e.g., central governments, supra-national government institutions, regional governments or municipal governments. Corporate bonds include bonds issued by corporations and covered bonds which are backed by cash flows from mortgages or public sector loans.

In Lux GAAP, such assets are valued at acquisition cost and decreased when necessary by impairments. In the MVBS, they are valued at fair value. The fair value is mainly determined using the market and the income approach. Primary inputs to the market approach are quoted prices for identical or comparable assets in active markets. The income approach in most cases means a present value technique where either the cash flow or the discount curve is adjusted to reflect credit risk and liquidity risk.

D.1.2.4 Collective investment undertakings (Investment funds)

Investment funds are defined as undertakings whose sole purpose is the collective investment in transferrable securities and/or in other financial assets. Investment funds mainly include stock funds, debt funds, real estate funds and private equity funds. In Lux GAAP, investments funds are accounted at acquisition cost and decreased when necessary by impairments. In the MVBS, they are valued at fair value.

D.1.2.5 Derivatives

ALL holds derivatives in order to hedge a compensation plan.

D.1.3 Assets held for index-linked and unit-linked funds

Assets held for index-linked and unit-linked funds are defined as assets held for insurance policies, where the policyholder bears the risk. Index-linked and unit-linked assets are measured at fair value. The fair value for assets held for index-linked and unit-linked funds is mainly determined by market prices.

The difference between MVBS and Lux GAAP values is due to timing constraints; while intermediate valuations were used for MVBS, definitive valuations were used for Lux GAAP.

D.1.4 Loans and mortgages

Loans and mortgages include "loans and mortgages to individuals", "other loans" and "mortgages and loans on policies"; the latter are collateralized by the policies, while the further loans may also be without collateral.

In Lux GAAP, these assets are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. In the MVBS, they are measured at their fair value, which is based on the income approach using deterministic discounted cash flow models. The relevant discount rates are derived from observable market parameters and reflect the remaining life and credit risk of the instruments.

D.1.5 Reinsurance recoverable

ALL holds reinsurance recoverable from life, mainly resulting from the reinsurance of the EuroFund business to Allianz Vie S.A., and a small recoverable on the unit-linked business.

These recoverable represent the reinsurer's share in ALL's reserves (Lux GAAP) or technical provisions (MVBS), which are to be calculated on a gross basis in order to reflect that ALL is in general exposed to the credit risk of the reinsurer. The amounts recoverable from reinsurance contracts are calculated consistently with the boundaries of the underlying insurance or reinsurance contracts to which they relate.

The calculation takes into account the following cash flows:

- Cash inflows:
 - recoverable from reinsurance contracts for claims payments and related expenses; and
 - revenues from reinsurance commission and profit shares where specified in individual reinsurance contracts.
- Cash outflows:
 - future premiums for reinsurance contracts; and
 - counterparty default adjustment (the probability of default of the counterparty and the average loss resulting therefrom (loss-given-default)).

For ALL, the counterparty default adjustment is negligible, as the main recoverable from Allianz Vie S.A. is collateralized.

The different valuation of the recoverable in MVBS and Lux GAAP follows the different valuation of the reserves or technical provisions.

D.1.6 Insurance and intermediaries receivables

Insurance and intermediaries' receivables include amounts past-due by policyholders, insurers, and others participating in the insurance business, which are not included in the cash inflows of reserves or technical provisions. The latter is treated differently in MVBS and Lux GAAP. The valuation of the resulting asset is similar in both standards, though: they are measured at their nominal amount.

D.1.7 Reinsurance receivables

Reinsurance receivables include amounts past-due by reinsurers; by contrast to reinsurance recoverable, they relate to settled claims of policyholders or beneficiaries, payments in relation to other than insurance events or settled insurance claims. Reinsurance receivables are measured similarly to insurance receivables.

D.1.8 Receivables (trade, not insurance)

Receivables (trade, not insurance) include amounts receivable from employees or various business partners and are not insurance-related. They also include amounts receivable from public entities. Receivables (trade, not insurance) are measured at their nominal amount.

D.1.9 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include notes and coins in circulation that are commonly used to make payments, and deposits exchangeable for currency on demand at par and which are directly usable for making payments without penalty or restriction. Cash and cash equivalents are measured at nominal amount with, if necessary, an adjustment for probability of default of counterparty.

There is no difference between Lux GAAP and MVBS values as the respective assets are measured at their nominal values.

D.1.10 Any other assets, not elsewhere shown

Any other assets, not elsewhere shown, include any assets that are not included in the other balance sheet items. It includes mainly deferred charges but also assets. They are generally measured at fair value or at nominal amount. There is no significant difference between Lux GAAP and MVBS values as the respective assets are measured at their nominal values. However, note that Lux GAAP includes the accrued interests from bonds, which are shown in the line item bonds in MVBS.

Note that ALL has the following significant off-balance sheet asset: ALL has a reinsurance contract with Allianz Vie S.A. under which ALL commits to cede to the reinsurer all the premiums to be invested in the guaranteed return component, which is reinsured. As collateral for its commitment or recoverable from reinsurance, the reinsurer has opened a safekeeping account as a senior pledge to ALL. The market value of securities included in this account is 1.3 bnEUR. This pledge is an off-balance sheet asset of ALL. Apart from the above off-balance sheet item, all important information regarding the valuation of its assets, technical provisions and other liabilities for solvency purposes is addressed in the above sections.

D.2 Valuation of technical provisions

The following table shows the consolidated MVBS technical provisions on Super-LoB basis.

			Solvency II value
			C0010
Technical provisions	- non-life	R0510	
Technical pro	ovisions - non-life (excluding health)	R0520	
Г	echnical provisions calculated as a whole	R0530	
E	Best Estimate	R0540	
я	Risk margin	R0550	
Technical pro	ovisions - health (similar to non-life)	R0560	
Т	echnical provisions calculated as a whole	R0570	
E	Best Estimate	R0580	
Я	Risk margin	R0590	
Technical provisions	- life (excluding index-linked and unit-linked)	R0600	976,611,810.00
Technical pro	ovisions - health (similar to life)	R0610	
Г	echnical provisions calculated as a whole	R0620	
E	Best Estimate	R0630	
я	Risk margin	R0640	
Technical pro	visions - life (excluding health and index-linked and unit-linked)	R0650	976,611,810.00
Г	echnical provisions calculated as a whole	R0660	
E	Best Estimate	R0670	967,662,110.00
	Risk margin	R0680	8,949,700.00

 Table 4: Life – MVBS technical provisions on Super-LoB basis

D.2.1 Bases, methods and main assumptions

ALL calculates its technical provisions with respect of all insurance obligations to policyholders in accordance with Art. 100 of the Insurance Law. The technical provisions (TP) correspond to the current amount that ALL would have to pay if it was to transfer its insurance obligations immediately to another insurance undertaking. The technical provisions comprise the best estimate liabilities (BEL) and a risk margin (RM), which are calculated separately.

In the calculation, ALL's actuarial function takes into account the following characteristics:

- the degree of homogeneity of the risks,
- the variety of different sub-risks or risk components of which the risk is comprised,
- the way in which these sub-risks are interrelated with one another,
- the level of uncertainty i.e. the extent to which future cash flows can be predicted,
- the nature of the occurrence or crystallization of the risk in terms of frequency and severity,
- the type of the development of claims payments over time,
- the extent of potential policyholder loss,
- the type of business from which the risks originate (e.g. direct business or reinsurance business),

- the degree of correlation between different risk types, and
- any risk mitigation instruments applied, and their impact on the underlying risk profile.

D.2.1.1 Best Estimate Liabilities (BEL)

The BEL is calculated for all in-force policies at the valuation date. The BEL represents the value of discounted cash flows that emerge over the term of the policy. The cash flow projection used in the calculation takes account of all the cash inflows and cash outflows required to settle the insurance and reinsurance obligations over the lifetime thereof, including:

- future benefits maturity values, annuity payments, claims, surrender values,
- future expenses maintenance, servicing, overhead, commission, investment management, and
- future premiums contracted premiums.

All future amounts are discounted to the valuation date at the valuation discount rate.

Generally, simplifications or approximations must not result in an error of more than 5% in the results of the calculation. Appropriate simplified methods could be IFRS reserve or Lux GAAP reserve. All options and guarantees are evaluated and included in the BEL subject to a materiality assessment.

Best estimate assumptions regarding policyholder behavior on the take up of contractual options, as well as lapse or surrender, are based on current and credible information. The assumptions take account, either explicitly or implicitly, of the impact that future changes in financial and non-financial conditions may have on the exercise of those options.

In general, the nature of life insurance is such that their liabilities have longer durations than the available assets in the markets. For valuing liabilities, economic assumptions are needed for the full maturity of liabilities, and it is needed to extrapolate economic data beyond the horizon available for deep and liquid markets. Generally, this applies to rates and volatilities and is most significant for interest rates. The last liquid term varies significantly between markets. ALL uses the Allianz Group's yield curve extrapolation, which is done in accordance with Art. 46 and 47 of the Delegated Regulation (EU) 2015/35.

The main differences between MVBS (technical provisions) and Lux GAAP (reserves) are due to the different rates used for the discounting of BEL and reserves as well as the risk margin, which is added only to the BEL.

D.2.1.2 Risk Margin (RM)

The risk margin is calculated by determining the costs of providing an amount of eligible own funds equal to the SCR necessary to support the insurance obligations over lifetime.

Thereby an allowance for the cost of holding own funds for non-hedgeable risks is required, i.e. for the financial risks other than interest rate risks as well as insurance and operational risks that cannot be transferred through the capital markets. By contrast, no risk margin is required for hedgeable financial risks as these are transferred through the capital markets.

The cost of capital rate is set at 6% by Art. 39 of the Delegated Regulation (EU) 2015/35. Appropriate diversification benefits between Lines of Business (LoB) are reflected in the calculation of the risk margin.

D.2.1.3 Application of transitional measures

ALL does not apply the transitional measures referred to in Articles 308 c and d of the Directive 2009/138/EC.

D.2.2 Material changes

Material changes in the value of BEL resulted from the last yearly review of the non-economic assumptions. These relate to lapse assumptions and the allocation of expenses to the various portfolios of ALL, which impact the BEL due to their different durations.

D.2.3 Level of Uncertainty

D.2.3.1 Sensitivity testing

ALL tests the sensitivity of the technical provisions to changes in the key assumptions. Such sensitivity testing is to be performed by rerunning the in-force business using alternative assumptions. For each sensitivity test, key assumptions are changed with reference to the central values. The change in assumptions is applied at the valuation date. The central values as well as the effect of recalculating values with different assumptions must be reported. The sensitivities are to be performed on best estimate liabilities, risk margin as well as options & guarantees.

D.2.3.2 Non-economic assumptions

The calculation of technical provisions is necessarily based on economic and non-economic assumptions. Economic assumptions relate to the performance of ALL's assets. They are mainly set centrally in Allianz Group to ensure consistency.

Non-economic assumptions relate to mortality/morbidity, lapses and paid-ups, annuity conversion rates, expenses, profit sharing and future management actions. These non-economic assumptions including their methodology are set by ALL's actuarial function.

D.2.4 Volatility adjustment

ALL applies the volatility adjustment (VA) according to Art. 77d of the Directive 2009/138/EC, but not the matching adjustment according to its Art. 77b.

The volatility adjustment is a function of the market yield spread from a weighted average portfolio of sovereign and corporate bonds over risk-free. It is based on a reference portfolio per currency and per country. The risk-adjusted currency spread is applied as an adjustment to the discount rate. An additional adjustment is added to the discount rate, if the risk-adjusted currency spread is significantly higher than the risk-adjusted currency spread.

The volatility adjustment is applied to all lines of business, except unit-linked with guarantees (including variable annuities). The application ratio of the volatility adjustment is 65%. The subsequent table shows the impact of the VA application on various metrics.¹⁰

			Amount with Long Term Guarantee	e Impact of the LTG measures and transitionals (Step-by-step approach)					
			measures and transitionals	Without volatility adjustment and without other transitional measures	Impact of volatility adjustment set to zero	Impact of all LTG measures and transitionals			
			C0010	C0060	C0070	C0100			
Tech	nical provisions	R0010	5,382,315,850.00	5,384,858,400.00	2,542,550.00	2,542,550.00			
Basio	c own funds	R0020	138,301,680.00	136,514,765.00	-1,786,915.00	-1,786,915.00			
	Excess of assets over liabilities	R0030	138,301,680.00	136,514,765.00	-1,786,915.00	-1,786,915.00			
	Restricted own funds due to ring-fencing and matching portfolio	R0040	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00			
	ole own funds to meet Solvency Capital irement	R0050	138,301,680.00	136,514,765.00	-1,786,915.00	-1,786,915.00			
	Tier 1	R0060	138,301,680.00	136,514,765.00	-1,786,915.00	-1,786,915.00			
	Tier 2	R0070	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00			
	Tier 3	R0080	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00			
Solve	ency Capital Requirement	R0090	105,077,222.53	105,320,305.00	243,082.47	243,082.47			
	ole own funds to meet Minimum Capital iirement	R0100	138,301,680.00	136,514,765.00	-1,786,915.00	-1,786,915.00			
Minir	num Capital Requirement	R0110	26,269,305.63	26,330,076.00	60,770.37	60,770.37			

Table 5: impact of VA (values in EUR)

¹¹ As set out, ALL neither applies transitional measures nor the matching adjustment.

D.3 Other Liabilities

The following table reconcile the Liabilities between Lux Gaap and Solvency II. It includes both the technical provisions as mentioned in the section D.2 and the other liabilities.

			Solvency II value	Statutory accounts value
			C0010	C0020
Liabilities	Technical provisions - non-life	R0510		
	Technical provisions - non-life (excluding health)	R0520		
	Technical provisions calculated as a whole	R0530		
	Best Estimate	R0540		
	Risk margin	R0550		
	Technical provisions - health (similar to non-life)	R0560		
	Technical provisions calculated as a whole	R0570		
	Best Estimate	R0580		
	Risk margin	R0590		
	Technical provisions - life (excluding index-linked and unit-linked)	R0600	976,611,810.00	895,302,296.00
	Technical provisions - health (similar to life)	R0610		
	Technical provisions calculated as a whole	R0620		
	Best Estimate	R0630		
	Risk margin	R0640		
	Technical provisions - life (excluding health and index-linked and unit-linked)	R0650	976,611,810.00	
	Technical provisions calculated as a whole	R0660		
ĺ	Best Estimate	R0670	967,662,110.00	
ĺ	Risk margin	R0680	8,949,700.00	
ĺ	Technical provisions - index-linked and unit-linked	R0690	4,405,704,040.00	4,513,504,006.00
ĺ	Technical provisions calculated as a whole	R0700		
	Best Estimate	R0710	4,376,536,830.00	
	Risk margin	R0720	29,167,210.00	
	Other technical provisions	R0730		
	Contingent liabilities	R0740		
	Provisions other than technical provisions	R0750	11,642,500.00	8,855,545.00
	Pension benefit obligations	R0760		32,984.00
	Deposits from reinsurers	R0770		
	Deferred tax liabilities	R0780	4,133,640.00	
	Derivatives	R0790		
	Debts owed to credit institutions	R0800		
	Financial liabilities other than debts owed to credit institutions	R0810		
	Insurance & intermediaries payables	R0820	29,055,922.55	28,077,016.00
	Reinsurance payables	R0830	31,432,347.45	31,432,345.00
	Payables (trade, not insurance)	R0840	6,097,500.00	14,841,998.00
	Subordinated liabilities	R0850		
	Subordinated liabilities not in Basic Own Funds	R0860		
	Subordinated liabilities in Basic Own Funds	R0870		
	Any other liabilities, not elsewhere shown	R0880	8,084,990.00	4,017,373.00
	Total liabilities	R0900	5,472,762,750.00	5,496,063,563.00
Excess of a	Issets over liabilities	R1000	138,301,680.00	121,081,751.00

Table 6: Reconciliation of liabilities between Lux GAAP and MVBS

D.3.1 Provisions other than technical provisions

Provisions other than technical provisions refer to liabilities of uncertain timing and amount, excluding those reported under "Pension benefit obligations". The provisions are recognized as liabilities (assuming a reliable estimate can be made) when they are present obligations resulting from past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligations. They include, e.g. staff-related provisions, provisions for stock-based compensation, restructuring provisions and provisions for legal expenses and deferred income reserves.

The provisions are valued according to IAS 37 and IFRS 2 which is in line with the valuation required under Solvency II. IAS 37 requires using the best estimate for this kind of provisions. Therefore, there are no material differences between Lux GAAP and MVBS values.

D.3.2 Pension benefit obligations

Pension benefit obligations include the total net obligations related to the employee pension scheme (where applicable in accordance with the national pension scheme). Post-employment benefits refer to employee benefits other than termination benefits payable after completion of employment. Post-employment benefits are classified as either defined contribution or defined benefit plans. Pension benefit obligations are measured in accordance with IAS 19 as Allianz Group considers the valuation method according to IAS 19 the most appropriate valuation under Solvency II.

In Lux GAAP rules, the stock of technical reserves of these defined contributions plans are classified under the technical reserves. An additional reserve is accounted based on the previous IAS 19 rules (i.e. with the corridor approach).

In the MVBS, actuarial gains or losses are recognized. In addition, the stock of the technical reserves is no longer classified as a technical reserve but as part of the pension benefit obligations. Those two elements explain the valuation/reclassification difference between Lux GAAP and MVBS.

D.3.3 Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities are the amounts of income tax payable in future periods with respect to taxable temporary valuation differences in the MVBS compared to the tax valuation; they hence only exist in the MVBS.

Deferred taxes – except deferred tax assets arising from the carry forward of unused tax losses or unused tax credits – are valued on the basis of the difference between:

- the values ascribed to assets and liabilities recognized and valued in the MVBS, and
- the values ascribed to assets and liabilities as recognized and valued for tax purposes.

Temporary differences between the Solvency II value of the assets and liabilities and their corresponding tax base as defined in IAS 12 are assessed consistently on a single asset or liability basis. The deferred tax calculation considers the tax regulations specific to particular assets and liabilities in the applicable tax regime.

D.3.4 Insurance and intermediaries payables

Insurance and intermediaries' payables refer to amounts past-due to policyholders, insurers and others participating in the insurance business, but are not technical provisions. They include amounts past-due to (re)insurance intermediaries (e.g. commissions due to intermediaries but not yet paid) and exclude loans and mortgages due to insurance companies, if they are not linked to insurance business but are only related to financing (and are, therefore, included in financial liabilities). They are generally measured at their nominal amount with an adjustment for the probability of default of the counterparty and without taking account of subsequent changes to own credit standing. The nominal value is considered as a good proxy for the fair value within the materiality and proportionality principles.

Therefore, insurance and intermediaries' payables are measured at nominal value with an adjustment for probability of default for counterparty risk in both Lux GAAP and MVBS.

There are no significant differences between Lux GAAP and MVBS values. The small adjustment for the MVBS of this liability is reflected on the "Insurance & intermediaries' receivables" account on the asset side.

D.3.5 Reinsurance payables

Reinsurance payables are amounts payable, past-due to reinsurers (especially current accounts) other than deposits that are linked to the reinsurance business, but that are not included in reinsurance recoverable. They include payables to reinsurers that relate to ceded premiums. They are generally measured at their nominal amount with an adjustment for the probability of default of the counterparty and without taking account of subsequent changes to own credit standing. The nominal value is considered as a good proxy for the fair value within the materiality and proportionality principles.

Therefore, reinsurance payables are measured at nominal value with an adjustment for probability of default for counterparty risk under both Lux GAAP and MVBS.

There is no (material) difference between Lux GAAP and MVBS values.

D.3.6 Payables (trade, not insurance)

Payables (trade, not insurance) include the total amount of trade payables, including amounts due to employees, suppliers, etc. and are not insurance-related. They also include amounts owed to public entities. Payables are generally recognized with their settlement amount under Lux GAAP, which is considered to be the market value.

However, if there are material differences between the Lux GAAP value and the MVBS value, then revaluation adjustment is considered. Note that a large portion of these payables in Lux GAAP are classified as other liabilities in the MVBS.

D.3.7 Any other liabilities, not elsewhere shown

ALL holds any other liabilities, which are not elsewhere shown and which include any liabilities that are not included in the other balance sheet items. These are those which are classified as payable in Lux GAAP.

E. Capital Management

E.1 Own Funds

E.1.1 Principles for Capital Management

ALL fully complies with the regulatory requirements in particular of Art. 104 of the Insurance Law such that it holds sufficient eligible own funds to cover the SCR and MCR. This means according to the regulatory requirements that ALL has sufficient own funds to meet all its obligations and considering all possible risks with a probability or confidence level of 99.5%.

Furthermore, ALL has implemented a transparent and effective governance to ensure ongoing compliance with the capital requirements based on its capital management policy, which consistent with Allianz Group's policy.

In Allianz Group, capital is managed centrally to protect the Group's capital base and its competitiveness and to ensure its fungibility within the Group, which is necessary to ensure compliance with regulatory minimum capital requirements in all entities of the Group.

Capital (own funds) poses the central resource for ALL to support its multiple activities. It is managed such that it efficiently supports the business strategy and provides the necessary risk-bearing capacity over a mid-term horizon. For that, capital needs are projected annually over ALL's planning horizon of three years, considering the planned business development and estimated financial markets.

In addition, ALL defines its capital needs well above the regulatory minimum requirements: they are defined such that own funds would still exceed the SCR and MCR after the worst of several scenarios, which are calculated each year as part of the ORSA process (see section B.3.5) and are then integrated into ALL's risk strategy as risk appetite limit (so called management ratio; see section B.3.1.2). A further constraint according to ALL's capital management policy is that a dividend should only be distributed if the remaining own funds still exceed the amount necessary to meet the management ratio.

E.1.2 Own Fund items

The following table shows the own funds of ALL. They consist of ordinary share capital, related share premium account and the reconciliation reserve, all of which items are of the highest quality according to Art. 102 (4) of the Insurance Law (tier 1) and thus eligible to cover both SCR and MCR. The reconciliation reserve comprises accrued profits and the valuation differences between Solvency II (MVBS) and Lux GAAP (see sections D.1 and D.3). As such, the reconciliation reserve is subject to volatility.

			Total
			C0010
before deduction or participations in other financial sector as foreseen	Ordinary share capital (gross of own shares)	R0010	30,000,000.00
	Share premium account related to ordinary share capital	R0030	16,500,000.00
	Initial funds, members' contributions or the equivalent basic own - fund item for mutual and mutual-type undertakings	R0040	
in article 68 of	Subordinated mutual member accounts	R0050	
	Surplus funds	R0070	
	Preference shares	R0090	
	Share premium account related to preference shares	R0110	
	Reconciliation reserve	R0130	91,801,680.00
	Subordinated liabilities	R0140	
	An amount equal to the value of net deferred tax assets	R0160	
	Other own fund items approved by the supervisory authority as basic own funds not specified above	R0180	
Own funds from the as Solvency II own	financial statements that should not be represented by the reconciliation reserve and do not meet the criteria to be classified funde	R0220	
Deductions	Deductions for participations in financial and credit institutions	R0230	
Total basic own fun	ds after deductions	R0290	138,301,680.00
	Unpaid and uncalled ordinary share capital callable on demand	R0300	
Ancillary own funds	Unpaid and uncalled initial funds, members' contributions or the equivalent basic own fund item for mutual and mutual - type undertakings, callable on demand	R0310	
	Unpaid and uncalled preference shares callable on demand	R0320	
	A legally binding commitment to subscribe and pay for subordinated liabilities on demand	R0330	
	Letters of credit and guarantees under Article 96(2) of the Directive 2009/138/EC	R0340	
	Letters of credit and guarantees other than under Article 96(2) of the Directive 2009/138/EC	R0350	
	Supplementary members calls under first subparagraph of Article 96(3) of the Directive 2009/138/EC	R0360	
	Supplementary members calls - other than under first subparagraph of Article 96(3) of the Directive 2009/138/EC	R0370	
	Other ancillary own funds	R0390	
Total ancillary own	funds	R0400	
Available and	Total available own funds to meet the SCR	R0500	138,301,680.00
eligible own funds	Total available own funds to meet the MCR	R0510	138,301,680.00
	Total eligible own funds to meet the SCR		138,301,680.00
	Total eligible own funds to meet the MCR	R0550	138,301,680.00
SCR	2		105,077,222.53
MCR		R0600	26,269,305.63
Ratio of Eligible ow	n funds to SCR	R0620	131.62%
Ratio of Eligible ow	n funds to MCR	R0640	526.48%

Table 7: own funds items (values in EUR)

E.2 Solvency Capital Requirement and Minimum Capital Requirement

E.2.1 Overview

The own funds, which constitute the economic risk bearing capacity of ALL, are to be compared to the risks, to which ALL is actually exposed. Such risks are measured with the Solvency Capital Requirement (SCR) and the Minimum Capital Requirement (MCR). The SCR reflects the level of own funds, which ALL should hold in order to absorb extreme losses, which are expected to occur once in two hundred years (confidence level of 99.5%). The MCR reflects

the level of own funds, which ALL must at least hold to be allowed to stay in business. The following table shows the SCR and MCR and the respective solvency ratios when compared to the own funds (see section E.1.2).

Total available own funds to meet the SCR	R0500	138,301,680.00
Total available own funds to meet the MCR	R0510	138,301,680.00
Total eligible own funds to meet the SCR	R0540	138,301,680.00
Total eligible own funds to meet the MCR	R0550	138,301,680.00
	R0580	105,077,222.53
	R0600	26,269,305.63
/n funds to SCR	R0620	131.62%
n funds to MCR	R0640	526.48%
	Total available own funds to meet the MCR Total eligible own funds to meet the SCR Total eligible own funds to meet the MCR	Total available own funds to meet the MCR R0510 Total eligible own funds to meet the SCR R0540 Total eligible own funds to meet the MCR R0550 R0580 R0600 m funds to SCR R0620

Table 8: SCR and MCR (values in EUR)

E.2.2 SCR

ALL uses the standard formula according to Art. 107 of the Insurance Law to calculate its SCR. The SCR is the combination of the (net) Basic SCR (BSCR), the loss-absorbing capacity of deferred taxes and the operational risk.

The BSCR, in turn, is the aggregation of three risk modules, thereby considering diversification effects between the modules for the various risk categories and the loss absorbing capacity of technical provisions. The three risk modules are market risk, counterparty default or credit risk, and life underwriting risk. The risk modules for non-life and health underwriting as well as intangible asset risk are not relevant for ALL and hence not used. For more details regarding the risk categories, please refer to section C..

ALL does not use undertaking specific parameters for calculating its life underwriting risk or the duration-based equity risk sub-module. ALL does use, however, a simplified calculation with respect to the assessment of its reinsurance exposure in the counterparty default or credit risk module; this is justified by the nature, scale and complexity of the risks and adequate according to Art. 108 of the Insurance Law.

		Net solvency capital requirement	Gross solvency capital requirement
		C0030	C0040
Market risk	R0010	64,262,871.14	101,214,457.72
Counterparty default risk	R0020	5,500,241.17	5,500,241.17
Life underwriting risk	R0030	59,528,785.92	108,689,493.07
Health underwriting risk	R0040	0.00	0.00
Non-life underwriting risk	R0050	0.00	0.00
Diversification	R0060	-29,507,966.92	-47,577,614.10
Intangible asset risk	R0070	0.00	0.00
Basic Solvency Capital Requirement	R0100	99,783,931.30	167,826,577.85

Table 9: BSCR split by risk modules (values in EUR)

The further elements of ALL's SCR are shown in the subsequent table. They comprise the SCR for operational risks, which is based on ALL's GWP and does not consider diversification effects, as well as the loss absorbing capacity of technical provisions and deferred taxes. The latter reflect that the incurred losses in the SCR calculation would not be entirely borne by ALL's own funds, but also reduce its liabilities towards policyholders (technical provisions) and its tax tax tax tax table.

		Value
		C0100
Adjustment due to RFF/MAP nSCR aggregation	R0120	0.00
Operational risk	R0130	9,426,931.23
Loss-absorbing capacity of technical provisions	R0140	-68,042,646.55
Loss-absorbing capacity of deferred taxes	R0150	-4,133,640.00
Capital requirement for business operated in accordance with Art. 4 of Directive 2003/41/EC	R0160	0.00
Solvency capital requirement excluding capital add-on	R0200	105,077,222.53
Solvency Capital Requirement	R0220	105,077,222.53

Table 10: further elements of the SCR (values in EUR)

E.2.3 MCR

The MCR is calculated by a linear function of technical provisions and net written premiums during the last 12 months, capped at 45% and floored at 25% of the SCR. Moreover, an absolute floor to the MCR is defined. For ALL, the MCR is determined by the floor (i.e. 25% of SCR).

		C0070
Linear MCR	R0300	22,277,717.45
SCR	R0310	105,077,222.53
MCR cap	R0320	47,284,750.14
MCR floor	R0330	26,269,305.63
Combined MCR	R0340	26,269,305.63
Absolute floor of the MCR	R0350	4,000,000.00
Minimum Capital Requirement	R0400	26,269,305.63

 Table 11: calculation of the MCR (values in EUR)

E.2.4 Evolution of SCR and MCR

Compared to 2022, the SCR has decreased and such has the MCR, which amounts to 25% of SCR.

	4Q2021	4Q2022	difference
Solvency Capital Requirement (SCR)	123	105	18
Minimum Capital Requirement (MCR)	32	26	6

Table 12: evolution of SCR and MCR (values in mEUR)

F. Annex

F.1 S.02.01.01.01 (MVBS)

See Table 3 in section D.1 (assets) and Table 6 in section D. 3 (liabilities)

F.2 S.05.01.01.02 (Premiums, claims and expenses by LoB)

				Line	of Business for: life insurance obligat	tions	Total
				Insurance with profit participation	Index-linked and unit-linked insurance	Other life insurance	
				C0220	C0230	C0240	C0300
Premiums written	Gross		R1410	1,966,821.06	120,335,618.56	0.00	122,302,439.62
	Reinsurers' share		R1420	3,024,081.00			3,024,081.00
	Net		R1500	-1,057,259.94	120,335,618.56	0.00	119,278,358.62
Premiums earned	Gross		R1510	1,966,821.06	120,335,618.56	0.00	122,302,439.62
	Reinsurers' share		R1520	3,024,081.00			3,024,081.00
	Net		R1600	-1,057,259.94	120,335,618.56	0.00	119,278,358.62
Claims incurred	Gross		R1610	1,086,825,694.93	812,012,602.10	422,290.20	1,899,260,587.23
	Reinsurers' share		R1620	1,915,351,225.00			1,915,351,225.00
	Net		R1700	-828,525,530.07	812,012,602.10	422,290.20	-16,090,637.77
Expenses incurred				4,780,758.78	26,075,753.50	39,108.61	30,895,620.89
	Administrative expenses	Gross	R1910	2,807,481.35	12,957,107.60	9,311.97	15,773,900.92
		Reinsurers' share	R1920				
		Net	R2000	2,807,481.35	12,957,107.60	9,311.97	15,773,900.92
	Investment management expenses	Gross	R2010	2,780.79	855,758.21	9.22	858,548.22
		Reinsurers' share	R2020				
		Net	R2100	2,780.79	855,758.21	9.22	858,548.22
	Claims management expenses	Gross	R2110	236,709.22	1,071,329.50	92.86	1,308,131.58
		Reinsurers' share	R2120				
		Net	R2200	236,709.22	1,071,329.50	92.86	1,308,131.58
	Acquisition expenses	Gross	R2210	63,600.00	3,909,081.37		3,972,681.37
		Reinsurers' share	R2220				
		Net	R2300	63,600.00	3,909,081.37		3,972,681.37
	Overhead expenses	Gross	R2310	1,670,187.42	7,282,476.82	29,694.56	8,982,358.80
		Reinsurers' share	R2320				
		Net	R2400	1,670,187.42	7,282,476.82	29,694.56	8,982,358.80
Balance - other techn	ical expenses/income		R2510				
Total technical expen	ses		R2600				30,895,620.89
Total amount of surre	nders		R2700	1,087,911,144.00	812,012,602.00	422,290.00	1,900,346,036.00

F.3 S.04.05.02.01 (Premiums, claims and expenses by country)

Total by country Total by country Total by country		Total by country	Total by country	Total by country	Total by country		
		C0020	C0020	C0020	C0020	C0020	C0020
Country	R0010	(06) Other countries	(BE) BELGIUM	(DE) GERMANY	(FR) FRANCE	(IT) ITALY	(LU) LUXEMBOURG
Premiums written (gross)	R0020	0.00	0.00	3,864.00	603,520.00	0.00	1,359,437.00
Premiums earned (gross)	R0030	0.00	0.00	3,864.00	603,520.00	0.00	1,359,437.00
Claims incurred (gross)	R0040	11,900,589.00	61,341,016.00	550,790.00	566,939,402.00	165,939,537.00	280,154,360.00
Expenses incurred (gross)	R0050	430,264.53	187,373.00	148,801.00	3,146,979.00	332,386.00	534,955.00

F.4 S.12.01.01.01 (Gross TP as a whole and Gross BE for different countries)

				Insurance with profit participation	Index-linked and unit-linked insurance				Total (Life other than health insurance, incl. Unit-Linked)		
						Contracts without options and guarantees	Contracts with options or guarantees		Contracts without options and guarantees	Contracts with options or guarantees	
				C0020	C0030	C0040	C0050	C0060	C0070	C0080	C0150
Technical provisions calc	ulated as a whole		R0010								
Total Recoverables from to TP calculated as a wh		nd Finite Re after the adjustment for expected losses due to counterparty default associated	R0020								
Technical provisions calculated as a sum of	Best Estimate	Gross Best Estimate	R0030	964,976,030.00		4,281,149,340.00	95,387,490.00		2,686,080.00		5,344,198,940.00
BE and RM		Total recoverables from reinsurance/SPV and Finite Re before the adjustment for expected losses due to counterparty default	R0040	940,206,130.00			178,930.00				940,385,060.00
		Recoverables from reinsurance (except SPV and Finite Re) before adjustment for expected losses	R0050				178,930.00				178,930.00
		Recoverables from SPV before adjustment for expected losses	R0060								
		Recoverables from Finite Re before adjustment for expected losses	R0070	940,206,130.00							940,206,130.00
		Total Recoverables from reinsurance/SPV and Finite Re after the adjustment for expected losses due to counterparty default	R0080	940,206,130.00			177,490.00				940,383,620.00
		Best estimate minus recoverables from reinsurance/SPV and Finite Re	R0090	24,769,900.00		4,281,149,340.00	95,210,000.00		2,686,080.00		4,403,815,320.00
	Risk margin		R0100	8,949,000.00	29,167,210.00			700.00			38,116,910.00
Amount of the transitiona on Technical Provisions	Technical provision	ons calculated as a whole	R0110								
on reennedi Filovisions	Best Estimate		R0120					-			
	Risk margin		R0130								
Technical provisions - tot	al		R0200	973,925,030.00	4,405,704,040.00			2,686,780.00			5,382,315,850.00

F.5 S.22.01.01.01 (Impact of long-term measures)

			Amount with Long Term Guarantee measures and transitionals	e Impact of the LTG measures and transitionals (Step-by-step approach)					
			measures and transitionals	Without transitional on technical provisions	Without transitional on interest rate	Without volatility adjustment and without other transitional measures	Impact of volatility adjustment set to zero	Without matching adjustment and without all the others	Impact of all LTG measures and transitionals
			C0010	C0020	C0040	C0060	C0070	C0080	C0100
Tech	hnical provisions	R0010	5,382,315,850.00	5,382,315,850.00	5,382,315,850.00	5,384,858,400.00	2,542,550.00	5,384,858,400.00	2,542,550.00
Basic own funds R0		R0020	138,301,680.00	138,301,680.00	138,301,680.00	136,514,765.00	-1,786,915.00	136,514,765.00	-1,786,915.00
	Excess of assets over liabilities	R0030	138,301,680.00	138,301,680.00	138,301,680.00	136,514,765.00	-1,786,915.00	136,514,765.00	-1,786,915.00
	Restricted own funds due to ring-fencing and matching portfolio	R0040	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
Eligil	ible own funds to meet Solvency Capital Requirement	R0050	138,301,680.00	138,301,680.00	138,301,680.00	136,514,765.00	-1,786,915.00	136,514,765.00	-1,786,915.00
	Tier 1	R0060	138,301,680.00	138,301,680.00	138,301,680.00	136,514,765.00	-1,786,915.00	136,514,765.00	-1,786,915.00
	Tier 2	R0070	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
	Tier 3	R0080	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
Solve	ency Capital Requirement	R0090	105,077,222.53	105,077,222.53	105,077,222.53	105,320,305.00	243,082.47	105,320,305.00	243,082.47
Eligil	ible own funds to meet Minimum Capital Requirement	R0100	138,301,680.00	138,301,680.00	138,301,680.00	136,514,765.00	-1,786,915.00	136,514,765.00	-1,786,915.00
Minir	Minimum Capital Requirement R0110		26,269,305.63	26,269,305.63	26,269,305.63	26,330,076.00	60,770.37	26,330,076.00	60,770.37
Solve	ency Capital Requirement ratio	R0120	131.62%	131.62%	131.62%	129.62%	-735.11%	129.62%	-735.11%
Minir	mum Capital Requirement ratio	R0130	526.48%	526.48%	526.48%	518.47%	-2940.44%	518.47%	-2940.44%

F.6 S.23.01.01.01 (Own funds)

			Total	Tier 1 - unrestricted	Tier 1 - restricted	Tier 2	Tier 3
			C0010	C0020	C0030	C0040	C0050
Basic own funds before deduction			30,000,000.00	30,000,000.00		0.00	
for participations in	Share premium account related to ordinary share capital	R0030	16,500,000.00	16,500,000.00		0.00	
other financial	Initial funds, members' contributions or the equivalent basic own - fund item for mutual and mutual-type undertakings	R0040					
sector as foreseen in article 68 of	Subordinated mutual member accounts	R0050					
	Surplus funds	R0070					
	Preference shares	R0090					
	Share premium account related to preference shares	R0110					
	Reconciliation reserve	R0130	91,801,680.00	91,801,680.00			
	Subordinated liabilities	R0140					
	An amount equal to the value of net deferred tax assets	R0160					
	Other own fund items approved by the supervisory authority as basic own funds not specified above	R0180					
Own funds from the as Solvency II own	financial statements that should not be represented by the reconciliation reserve and do not meet the criteria to be classified	R0220					
Deductions	Deductions for participations in financial and credit institutions	R0230					
Total basic own fun	; after deductions		138,301,680.00	138,301,680.00		0.00	
	Unpaid and uncalled ordinary share capital callable on demand	R0300					
Ancillary own funds	Unpaid and uncalled initial funds, members' contributions or the equivalent basic own fund item for mutual and mutual - type undertakings, callable on demand	R0310					
lunus	Unpaid and uncalled preference shares callable on demand	R0320					
	A legally binding commitment to subscribe and pay for subordinated liabilities on demand	R0330					
	Letters of credit and guarantees under Article 96(2) of the Directive 2009/138/EC	R0340					
	Letters of credit and guarantees other than under Article 96(2) of the Directive 2009/138/EC	R0350					
	Supplementary members calls under first subparagraph of Article 96(3) of the Directive 2009/138/EC	R0360					
	Supplementary members calls - other than under first subparagraph of Article 96(3) of the Directive 2009/138/EC	R0370					
	Other ancillary own funds	R0390					
Total ancillary own	funds	R0400					
Available and	Total available own funds to meet the SCR		138,301,680.00	138,301,680.00		0.00	
eligible own funds	Total available own funds to meet the MCR		138,301,680.00	138,301,680.00		0.00	
	Total eligible own funds to meet the SCR		138,301,680.00	138,301,680.00		0.00	
	Total eligible own funds to meet the MCR		138,301,680.00	138,301,680.00		0.00	
SCR	•	R0580	105,077,222.53				
MCR		R0600	26,269,305.63				
Ratio of Eligible ow	n funds to SCR	R0620	131.62%				
Ratio of Eligible ow	n funds to MCR	R0640	526.48%				

F.7 S.25.01.01.01 and S.25.01.01.02 (SCR)

		Net solvency capital requirement	Gross solvency capital requirement	Allocation from adjustments due to RFF and Matching adjustments portfolios
		C0030	C0040	C0050
Market risk	R0010	64,262,871.14	101,214,457.72	
Counterparty default risk	R0020	5,500,241.17	5,500,241.17	
Life underwriting risk	R0030	59,528,785.92	108,689,493.07	
Health underwriting risk	R0040	0.00	0.00	
Non-life underwriting risk	R0050	0.00	0.00	
Diversification	R0060	-29,507,966.92	-47,577,614.10	
Intangible asset risk	R0070	0.00	0.00	
Basic Solvency Capital Requirement	R0100	99,783,931.30	167,826,577.85	

Calculation of Solvency Capital Requirement

			Value
			C0100
Adjustment due	to RFF/MAP nSCR aggregation	R0120	0.00
Operational risk		R0130	9,426,931.23
Loss-absorbing	capacity of technical provisions	R0140	-68,042,646.55
Loss-absorbing	capacity of deferred taxes	R0150	-4,133,640.00
Capital requirem	nent for business operated in accordance with Art. 4 of Directive 2003/41/EC	R0160	0.00
Solvency capita	I requirement excluding capital add-on	R0200	105,077,222.53
Capital add-ons	already set	R0210	
	of which, capital add-ons already set - Article 37 (1) Type a	R0211	
	of which, capital add-ons already set - Article 37 (1) Type b	R0212	
	of which, capital add-ons already set - Article 37 (1) Type c	R0213	
	of which, capital add-ons already set - Article 37 (1) Type d	R0214	
Solvency Capita	I Requirement	R0220	105,077,222.53
Other	Capital requirement for duration-based equity risk sub-module	R0400	
information on SCR	Total amount of Notional Solvency Capital Requirements for remaining part	R0410	
	Total amount of Notional Solvency Capital Requirements for ring-fenced funds	R0420	
	Total amount of Notional Solvency Capital Requirements for matching adjustment portfolios	R0430	
	Diversification effects due to RFF nSCR aggregation for article 304	R0440	
	Method used to calculate the adjustment due to RFF/MAP nSCR aggregation	R0450	(4) 4 - No adjustment
	Net future discretionary benefits	R0460	161,922,155.00

F.8 S.28.01.01.03, S.28.01.01.04 and S.28.01.01.05 (MCR)

Linear formula component for life insurance and reinsurance obligations

		C0040
MCRL Result	R0200	22,277,717.45

		Net (of reinsurance/SPV) best estimate and TP calculated as a whole	Net (of reinsurance/SPV) total capital at risk
		C0050	C0060
Obligations with profit participation - guaranteed benefits	R0210	0.00	
Obligations with profit participation - future discretionary benefits	R0220	161,922,155.00	
Index-linked and unit-linked insurance obligations	R0230	4,376,359,341.43	
Other life (re)insurance and health (re)insurance obligations	R0240	2,686,076.23	
Total capital at risk for all life (re)insurance obligations	R0250		9,637,891.11

Overall MCR calculation

		C0070
Linear MCR	R0300	22,277,717.45
SCR	R0310	105,077,222.53
MCR cap	R0320	47,284,750.14
MCR floor	R0330	26,269,305.63
Combined MCR	R0340	26,269,305.63
Absolute floor of the MCR	R0350	4,000,000.00
Minimum Capital Requirement	R0400	26,269,305.63

This page is left blank intentionally